
CORPORATION OF THE 

TOWNSHIP OF BILLINGS 

 

AGENDA 

May 3rd, 2022 7:30 p.m.                        Electronic 

  

 

1. OPEN 

 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA         

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST        

 

4. ADOPTION OF MINUTES  

a) April 19th, 2022 Public 

Meeting Minutes 

b) April 19th, 2022 Regular 

Council Meeting Minutes 

c) April 26th, 2022 Special 

Council Meeting Minutes 

5. DELEGATIONS             

               

6. COMMITTEE REPORTS  

a) Economic Development 

Committee March 9th, 

2022 

b) Economic Development 

Committee April 13th, 

2022 

7. OLD BUSINESS 

 

8. NEW BUSINESS  

a) Citizen of the Year 

Award 

b) Interview Committee for 

the CAO/Clerk Position 

c) World Ocean’s Day 2022 

9.  CORRESPONDENCE 

 

10. INFORMATION 

a) Firefighter Certification 

b) 2021 Municipal Property 

Assessment Corporation 

Financial Statements  



c) ICIP Green Funding: Old 

Mill Water Line 

Replacement Project 

d) Kagawong Angling 

Platform 

11. ACCOUNTS FOR PAYMENT 

 

12. CLOSED SESSION  

a) Labour Relations 

13. CONFIRMING BY-LAW 

 

14. ADJOURNMENT    



 

 

Memorandum 
To:   Mayor, Council  

cc:    Staff, Public 

From:  Staff 

Date:   April 28 th, 2022 
 

RE:   May 3 rd, 2022 Council Meeting 

 

NOTE: 

The Exotic Pets 2021- 30 By-Law will be addressed during the May 16th, 2022 Regular Council 

Meeting. 
 

4. Minutes 

 

a) April 19th, 2022 Public Meeting Minutes 

 

Please review the minutes for approval. 

 

b) April 19th, 2022 Regular Council Meeting Minutes 

 

Please review the minutes for approval. 

 

c) April 26th, 2022 Special Council Meeting Minutes 

 

Please review the minutes for approval. 

 

5. Delegations 

 

 None. 

 

6. Committee Reports 

 

a) Economic Development Committee March 9th, 2022 

 

Councillor Sharon Alkenbrack to deliver report to Council. 

 

b) Economic Development Committee April 13th, 2022 

 

Councillor Sharon Alkenbrack to deliver report to Council. 

 

7. Old Business 

 

None. 

 

8. New Business 

 

a) Citizen of the Year Award 

 

Recommendation: 

That Council directs staff to issue a call for nominations for the 2022 Citizen of the Year in Billings 

Township. 



 

 

 

The Citizen of the Year has also been referred to as the Volunteer of the Year or the Senior of the 

Year. Last year Council directed staff to seek nominations from the Public through the Township 

Website and Facebook Page. Once the deadline had passed Council reviewed all nominees and 

selected a winner. This method seemed to work well and could be adapted again this year. 

 

b) Interview Committee for the CAO/Clerk Position 

 

Recommendation: 

That Council appoints 3 members of Council to make up an Interview Committee for the CAO/Clerk 

Position. 

 

An Interview Committee is required for the hiring of a new CAO/Clerk. 

This committee should consist of members of Council and Staff. 

The responsibility of an Interview Committee member is to interview all CAO/Clerk candidates and 

determine a successful candidate for the position.  

 

c) World Ocean’s Day 2022 

 

Recommendation: 

That Council pass the provided resolution in support of recognizing and celebrating World Ocean’s 

Day 2022 and the advancement of ocean conservation in Canada. 

 

9. Correspondence  

 

None. 

 

10. Information 

 

There are a number of items attached for Council’s information. Council may move any of these items to new 

business during the agenda approval for discussion at this meeting, or request that an item(s) be included on 

a future agenda for discussion. 

a) Firefighter Certification 

b) 2021 Municipal Property Assessment Corporation Financial Statements  

c) ICIP Green Funding: Old Mill Water Line Replacement Project 

d) Kagawong Angling Platform 

 

12. Closed Session 

There will be a closed session to discuss a matter pertaining to labour relations. 



The Corporation of the 

Township of Billings 

Public Meeting 

 

April 19th, 2022 7:00 p.m.            Electronic Meeting    

 

 

Present: Mayor Anderson, Councillors Sharon Alkenbrack, Michael Hunt, Sharon 

Jackson and Bryan Barker 

Regrets: None 

Staff: Kathy McDonald, CAO/Clerk; Tiana Mills, Deputy Clerk; Todd Gordon, MPM; 

Cheryl McCulligh, Treasurer 

Media: Tom Sasvari 

 

1. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 

 2022-114 Barker - Hunt 

BE IT RESOLVED that this public meeting of Council be opened with a quorum 

present at 7:00 p.m. with Mayor Anderson presiding. 

Carried 

 

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA   

 2022- 115 Alkenbrack - Jackson 

BE IT RESOLVED that the agenda for the April 19th, 2022 public meeting be 

accepted as presented by the Manitoulin Planning Board. 

Carried 

 

3. OPENING REMARKS 

a) Mayor Anderson 

Mayor Anderson gave a brief introduction to amendment number 8011ZBL-

22-001 Applicant/Owner – Darren Ellis. 

 

4. APPLICATION TO BE CONSIDERED  

i) Zoning By-Law Amendment No. 8011ZBL-22-001 Applicant/Owner – 

Darren Ellis 

Mayor Anderson read the Zoning By-Law Amendment No. 8011ZBL-22-001 

Applicant/Owner – Darren Ellis information as provided in the agenda 

package from the Manitoulin Planning Board. 

 

5. PUBLIC REPRESENTATIONS 

  No members of the public were present at this public meeting to comment. 

 

6. MAYOR’S CLOSING REMARKS  

Mayor Anderson thanked everyone for attending the meeting. 

 

7. ADJOURNMENT 

2022-116 Barker - Hunt 



BE IT RESOLVED that this public meeting of Council be adjourned at 7:17 p.m.    

Carried 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________       _________________________________ 

Ian Anderson, Mayor     Kathy McDonald, CAO/Clerk 



The Corporation of the 

Township of Billings 

Regular Council Meeting 

 

April 19th, 2022 7:30 p.m.            Electronic Meeting    

 

 

Present: Mayor Anderson, Councillors Sharon Alkenbrack, Michael Hunt, Sharon 

Jackson and Bryan Barker 

Regrets: None 

Staff: Kathy McDonald, CAO/Clerk; Tiana Mills, Deputy Clerk; Todd Gordon, MPM; 

Arthur Moran, By Law Officer; Cheryl McCulligh, Treasurer 

Media: Tom Sasvari 

Members of the General Public 

 

 

1. OPEN 

 2022-117 Alkenbrack - Barker 

BE IT RESOLVED that this regular meeting of Council be opened with a 

quorum present at 7:32 p.m. with Mayor Anderson presiding. 

Carried 

 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA    

 2022-118 Jackson - Alkenbrack 

BE IT RESOLVED that the agenda for the April 19th, 2022 regular meeting of 

Council be accepted as amended. 

Carried 

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST  

None. 

 

4. ADOPTION OF MINUTES   

a) Regular Council Minutes – April 5th, 2022 

2022-119 Alkenbrack - Barker 

BE IT RESOLVED that the minutes for the April 5, 2022 regular meeting of 

Council be accepted as presented. 

      Carried 

 

5. DELEGATIONS 

 None.   

 

6. COMMITTEE REPORTS  

a) Parks, Recreation and Wellness Committee Report – March 28th, 2022 

Council received report. 

 

b) Manitoulin Phragmites Project Meeting Report – March 31st, 2022 



 

Council received report.  

 

c) Climate Action Committee Report – April 6th, 2022 

Council received report.  

 

d) Provincial Offences Act Meeting Report – April 6th, 2022 

Council received report.  

 

e) Museum Committee Report – April 4th, 2022 

Council received report.   

  

7. OLD BUSINESS 

None. 

          

8. NEW BUSINESS 

a) 2019-2021 Landfill Monitoring Report 

2022-120 Barker - Alkenbrack 

BE IT RESOLVED that Council acknowledges receipt of the 2019-2021 

Triennial Monitoring Report. 

      Carried 

b) Longest Day of Smiles 

2022-121 Jackson - Hunt 

BE IT RESOLVED that Council proclaims June 19th, 2022 as the Longest 

Day of Smiles. 

      Carried 

 

c) National Volunteer Week 

2022-122 Jackson - Alkenbrack 

WHEREAS, 24 million Canadians give their time through formal or informal 

types of volunteering, contributing close to 5 billion volunteer hours per year; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, volunteers in The Township of Billings mentor our children, 

support those feeling isolated, beautify our green spaces, and fundraise for our 

charitable organizations; and  

 

WHEREAS, volunteers in The Township of Billings have stepped up during 

the COVID-19 pandemic to support families, friends, neighbours, and 

strangers, people standing up to systemic racism, and people sharing insights 

on how to create a more just and equitable society; and  

 

WHEREAS, The Township of Billings’ volunteers are individuals, families, 

workers, retirees, community members of all ages and backgrounds; and  

 



WHEREAS, the collective result of the work done by our city’s volunteers is 

that The Township of Billings is a more desirable place to live; and  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, The Township of Billings, proclaims April 24-30, 

2022, as National Volunteer Week, and urge our fellow citizens to recognize 

the crucial role played by volunteers in our community. 

      Carried 

 

d) Project Lifesaver 

2022-123 Barker - Hunt 

BE IT RESOLVED that Council agrees to support Project Lifesaver with a 

payment of $1,000 to be paid to the OPP, which will be used to cover the 

costs of the necessary project components. 

      Carried 

 

e) 2021-49 Vaccination Policy 

2022-124 Alkenbrack - Barker 

BE IT RESOLVED that Council rescind By-law 2021-49, being a by-law to 

establish a COVID-19 Vaccination Policy 

      Carried 

 

f) 2022-18 Health and Safety Policy  

2022-125 Alkenbrack - Jackson 

BE IT RESOLVED that Council accept By-Law 2022-18, being a by-law to 

establish a new health and safety policy, be given first, second and third 

reading and enacted. 

      Carried 

 

9. CORRESPONDANCE 

a) Household Hazardous Waste Day 

2022-126 Barker - Alkenbrack 

BE IT RESOLVED that Council agrees to participate in the Household 

Hazardous Waste Day scheduled for July 23rd, 2022 organized by Central 

Manitoulin. 

      Carried 

 

10. INFORMATION 

a) Annual Repayment Limit 

Council received report. 

 

b) Gravel Applications Motion 

Council received report. 

 

c) More Homes for Everyone Plan 

Council received report. 

 



d) Reopening Ontario Act 

Council received report. 

 

e) Emergency Management Compliance Results 

Council received report. 

 

f) Avian Influenza in Ontario 

Council received report. 

 

g) April 4, 2022 Museum Minutes 

Council received report. 

 

11. ACCOUNTS FOR PAYMENT 

2022-127 Hunt - Alkenbrack 

BE IT RESOLVED that Council authorizes the following accounts for payment: 

 General Accounts  $105,543.13 

and that cheques numbered 7215 to 7238 be authorized for signing as described in 

the attached register. 

      Carried 

 

12. CLOSED SESSION  

 None. 

  

13. CONFIRMING BY-LAW 

2022-128 Barker - Alkenbrack 

BE IT RESOLVED that By-law 2022-19, being a by-law to confirm the 

proceedings of Council be given first, second, third reading and enacted. 

       Carried 

 

14. ADJOURNMENT  

 2022-129 Barker - Hunt 

BE IT RESOLVED that this regular meeting of Council be adjourned at 8:20 

p.m.    

Carried 

 

 

 

_________________________________       _________________________________ 

Ian Anderson, Mayor     Kathy McDonald, CAO/Clerk 



The Corporation of the 

Township of Billings 

Special Council Meeting 

 

April 26th, 2022 6:00 p.m.            Electronic Meeting    

 

Present: Mayor Anderson, Councillors, Bryan Barker, Michael Hunt and Sharon Jackson 

Staff: Kathy McDonald, CAO/Clerk; Tiana Mills, Deputy Clerk; Todd Gordon, MPM; 

Cheryl McCulligh, Treasurer 

Regrets: Sharon Alkenbrack 

Media: Tom Sasvari 

Members of the General Public 

 

1. OPEN 

 2022-130 Barker - Hunt 

BE IT RESOLVED that this special meeting of Council be opened with a 

quorum present at 6:03 p.m. with Mayor Anderson presiding. 

Carried 

 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA    

 2022-131 Jackson - Barker 

BE IT RESOLVED that the agenda for the April 26th, 2022 special meeting of 

Council be accepted as presented.   

Carried 

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST  

None. 

 

4. ADOPTION OF MINUTES   

 None.         

 

5. DELEGATIONS 

 None 

       

6. COMMITTEE REPORTS  

 None. 

        

7. OLD BUSINESS 

None. 

                

8. NEW BUSINESS 

a) 2022-20 Kagawong River Pedestrian Bridge Design  

2022-132 Barker - Hunt 

BE IT RESOLVED that Council give by-law 2022-20 being a by-law to 

enter into a contract with Water’s Edge & Tacoma Engineering Inc., in 



response to RFP 2022-01 Kagawong Pedestrian Bridge Design, first, second, 

third reading and enacted. 

     Carried 

 

9.  CORRESPONDENCE 

 None. 

 

10. INFORMATION 

 None. 

 

11. ACCOUNTS FOR PAYMENT 

 None. 

 

12. CLOSED SESSION  

 None. 

 

13. CONFIRMING BY-LAW 

2022-133 Jackson - Barker 

BE IT RESOLVED that By-law 2022-21, being a by-law to confirm the 

proceedings of Council be given first, second, third reading and enacted. 

      Carried 

 

14. ADJOURNMENT  

 2022-134 Barker - Hunt 

BE IT RESOLVED that this special meeting of Council be adjourned at 6:13 

p.m.    

Carried 

  

   

 

 

_________________________________       _________________________________ 

Ian Anderson, Mayor     Kathy McDonald, CAO/Clerk 







His/Her Worship Mayor,

I’m writing to you on behalf of Nature Canada’s ocean protection team with an opportunity to help create
positive change for your community, and the natural world we all rely on.

Canada has the longest coastline in the world. With it comes the duty to be leaders in protecting and
restoring the ocean. As part of the Global Deal for Nature in the Paris Accords, our government has
promised to protect 30 percent of oceans by 2030 through establishing Marine Protected Areas. In
2015 only one percent of Canadian oceans were protected. But as of 2020, due advocacy by Canadians
like you, nearly 14 percent of the world’s oceans are now safeguarded for generations to come.

Municipalities can be powerful change agents in the goal to protect 30 percent of the world’s oceans by
2030. We have seen this leadership in action in combating climate change, when cities and towns across
the world stepped up to reduce their greenhouse gas emissions and pressured federal governments to do
the same. Whether on the coast or far inland, municipalities rely on ocean ecosystems for seafood
production, climate regulation, and the preservation of unique and beautiful animals and ecosystems.

Municipalities are on the front lines of climate change and feel effects firsthand, from extreme
heat to extreme precipitation.

Reaching our ocean protection goal will help us win the fight against global warming. Municipalities are on
the front lines of climate change and feel effects firsthand, from extreme heat to extreme precipitation.
The oceans play a pivotal role counteracting climate change as
the largest carbon sink, providing more than half our oxygen while storing fifty times more carbon than the
atmosphere. Oceans also regulate weather, helping to balance the uneven distribution of solar radiation.

Here’s why we need you: Your voice as a municipality can influence national governments and have a
direct effect on the quality of life for your residents. It’s as easy as having the council pass the attached
resolution. By taking this simple step, you will be helping our policy team show government officials that
Canadians support National Marine Protected Areas and encourage them to implement effective policies.

It would mean a great deal to us if you could sign on to help secure a future for our generation and the
generations to come.

In solidarity with you and with our natural world,

Paul Gregory
Senior Oceans Campaigner

Nature Canada is one of the oldest national nature conservation charities in Canada. For 80 years, we’ve helped protect over 110
million acres of parks and wildlife areas in Canada and countless species. Today, Nature Canada represents a network of over
130,000 members and supporters, guided by more than 1,200 nature organizations.



1 
 

Ministry of the Solicitor General 

Office of the Fire Marshal  
 
25 Morton Shulman Avenue 
Toronto ON   M3M 0B1 
Tel: 647-329-1100 
Fax:  647-329-1143 

Ministère du Solliciteur général 

Bureau du commissaire des incendies 
 
25, avenue Morton Shulman 
Toronto ON  M3M 0B1 
Tél.: 647-329-1100 
Téléc.: 647-329-1143 

 

 

 

 
MEMORANDUM TO: Heads of Council / Chief Administrative Officers 
  
FROM: Tim Beckett 
 Acting Ontario Fire Marshal  
  
DATE: April 14, 2022 
  
SUBJECT: O. Reg. 343/22: Firefighter Certification 

 
 
 
Dear Heads of Council and Chief Administrative Officers,  
 
I am writing to provide an update on the work that we have been doing on firefighter 
certification under the Fire Protection and Prevention Act, 1997.  
 
I am pleased to let you know that O. Reg. 343/22: Firefighter Certification has been filed under 
the Act. It is available on e-Laws here.  
 
Throughout the consultation period, we received tremendous feedback and support from 
municipalities, fire chiefs, and partner associations including the Ontario Association of Fire 
Chiefs, Ontario Professional Fire Fighters Association and the Fire Fighters Association of 
Ontario. The Office of the Fire Marshal (OFM) has been working collaboratively with all partners 
to understand the regulation and how the OFM can best support departments at the local level 
throughout the implementation period. 
 
The final regulation reflects changes related to exceptions, transition, and certification 
standards in response to feedback received during the Regulatory Registry posting period and 
during the municipal technical briefings. This feedback assisted in finalizing the firefighter 
certification regulation, which provides flexibility for local municipalities, while supporting 
firefighter and public safety.  
 
With this regulation, we are not asking that firefighters train to higher levels than they already 
are. Certification is a process of verification, ensuring that a firefighter is trained to the standard 
they are required to perform, as set out in the level of service determined by a municipal 
council or territory without municipal organization. 
 

https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/97f04
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/r22343?search=343%2F22


2 
 

Mandatory certification in Ontario will validate the training that firefighters receive and, in turn, 
will create safer communities.  
 
Many of the comments received with respect to implementation have also been or will be 
addressed in the coming months. For instance, to address capacity pressures within the OFM, 
we are already increasing the staff complement for both the Ontario Fire College (OFC) and our 
Academic Standards and Evaluation Unit. This will ensure that we can respond to the current 
and ongoing demand for training and certification across Ontario.   
 
We also continue to refine and enhance both our Adjunct Instructor and Regional Training 
Centre models to meet provincial demand. Learning Contract accessibility has been expanded 
allowing fire departments that already train together to continue to do so in order to achieve 
certification. The OFC will also be working with fire departments to increase their own internal 
training capacity and will be exploring opportunities to provide additional training for senior 
officers through upcoming seminars, conferences and webinars.   
 
At the same time, we heard from many departments that purchasing textbooks and other 
training essentials is challenging. We have therefore explored options with the Fire Marshal’s 
Public Fire Safety Council (FMPFSC) to look at supports that they can provide on the 
procurement of textbooks and other materials. The FMPFSC is supportive of the certification file 
and will be finalizing options that will be communicated to fire departments shortly.   
 
I am pleased that we have been able to work so collaboratively with municipalities, fire 
departments, and other partners to have this regulation finalized. With a long implementation 
window, we are confident that certification is achievable and look forward to working with 
firefighters across Ontario as this regulation is operationalized.  
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Tim Beckett 
Acting Fire Marshal  
 
 
c:  Mario Di Tommaso, O.O.M.  
      Deputy Solicitor General, Community Safety 
 



Financial statements of 
Municipal Property Assessment 
Corporation 

December 31, 2021 



Independent Auditor’s Report 1–2 

Statement of financial position 3 

Statement of operations 4 

Statement of changes in net assets 5 

Statement of cash flows 6 

Notes to the financial statements 7–15



Deloitte LLP 
400 Applewood Crescent 
Suite 500 
Vaughan ON  L4K 0C3 
Canada 

Tel: 416-601-6150 
Fax: 416-601-6151 
www.deloitte.ca 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Board Members of 
Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 
(the “Corporation”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021, and 
the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes 
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (collectively referred 
to as the “financial statements”). 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Corporation as at December 31, 2021, and the results of its operations and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for 
not-for-profit organizations. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards 
(“Canadian GAAS”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Corporation in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Other Information 
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon. The Annual Performance Report is expected to be available to us after the date of this 
auditor’s report. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated.  

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are 
required to communicate the matter with those charged with governance. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Corporation’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Corporation or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

http://www.deloitte.ca


Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Corporation’s financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian GAAS will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Corporation’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Corporation 
to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Other matter 
The financial statements of the Corporation as at and for the year ended December 31, 2020 were 
audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements dated 
March 30, 2021. 

Chartered Professional Accountants 
Licensed Public Accountants 
March 30, 2022 



Municipal Property Assessment Corporation
Statement of financial position 
As at December 31, 2021 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Notes 
2021 

$ 
2020 

$ 

Assets 
Current assets 

Cash 16,519 10,233 
Investments 3 — 2,076 
Accounts receivable 3,335 3,728 
Prepaid expenses 2,054 2,570 

21,908 18,607 

Long-term investments 3 147,690 131,493 
Capital assets 4 8,804 10,343 
Long-term prepaid expenses 367 — 
Intangible assets 5 9 50 

178,778 160,493 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 14 27,909 27,425 
Deferred revenue 6 2,761 1,801 
Current portion of capital leases 10 685 759 

31,355 29,985 

Employee future benefits 7 49,267 49,899 
Deferred lease inducements 1,901 2,306 
Long-term portion of capital leases 10 463 1,116 

82,986 83,306 

Commitments and contingencies 9 and 11 

Net assets 
Unrestricted 6,958 6,816 
Internally restricted 8 81,169 61,853 
Invested in capital and intangible assets 7,665 8,518 

95,792 77,187 
178,778 160,493 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

Approved by the Board of Directors 

, Director 

, Director

Page 3



Municipal Property Assessment Corporation

Page 4

Statement of operations 
Year ended December 31, 2021 
(In thousands of dollars) 

2021 
$ 

2020 
$ 

Revenue 
Municipal 214,919 214,919 
Other 23,601 19,884 
Interest and dividend income 3,353 3,217 

241,873 238,020 

Expenses 
Salaries and benefits 186,315 182,419 
Professional services 13,320 12,741 
Information technology 11,222 10,578 
Facilities 8,581 9,013 
General and administrative 6,096 6,411 
Royalties 4,024 3,352 
Amortization of capital and intangible assets 3,601 3,883 
Gain on disposal of capital assets (65) (245) 

233,094 228,152 

Excess of revenue over expenses before 
change in fair value of investments 8,779 9,868 

Change in fair value of investments 6,998 8,229 
Excess of revenue over expenses for the year 15,777 18,097 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Municipal Property Assessment Corporation

Page 5

Statement of changes in net assets 
Year ended December 31, 2021 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Notes 
Unrestricted 

$  

Internally 
restricted 

$  
(Note 8) 

Invested 
in capital 

and 
intangible 

assets 
$  

2021 
Total 

$  

2020 
Total 

$ 

Net assets, beginning of year 6,816 61,853 8,518 77,187 65,460 
Excess of revenue over 

expenses for the year 19,313 — (3,536) 15,777 18,097 
Remeasurements and other 

items on employee future benefits 7 2,828 — — 2,828 (6,370) 
Acquisition of capital 

and intangible assets (2,054) — 2,054 — — 
Proceeds from disposal of capital and 

intangible assets 98 — (98) — — 
Incurred lease obligations for vehicles 

accounted for as capital leases 32 — (32) — — 
(Repayment) retirement of lease 

obligations for vehicles accounted 
for as capital leases (759) — 759 — — 

Interfund transfers to internally 
restricted reserves (19,316) 19,316 — — — 

Net assets, end of year 6,958 81,169 7,665 95,792 77,187 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Municipal Property Assessment Corporation

Page 6

Statement of cash flows 
Year ended December 31, 2021 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Notes 
2021 

$ 
2020 

$ 

Operating activities 
Excess of revenue over expenses for the year 15,777 18,097 
Employee future benefits payments 7 (505) (308) 
Add (deduct): Items not affecting cash 

Change in fair value of investments (6,998) (8,229) 
Reinvested investment income (3,122) (2,948) 
Employee future benefits expense 7 2,701 2,762 
Amortization of capital assets 3,560 3,830 
Amortization of intangible assets 41 53 
Gain on disposal of capital assets (65) (245) 
Amortization of lease liabilities (405) (167) 

10,984 12,845 

Changes in non-cash working capital 
Accounts receivable 393 (369) 
Prepaid expenses 149 (249) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 484 2,139 
Deferred revenue 960 493 

12,970 14,859 

Investing activities 
Purchase of investments (7,343) (17,532) 
Proceeds from sale of investments 3,342 5,532 
Purchase of capital assets (2,022) (2,040) 
Proceeds on disposal of capital assets 98 270 
Purchase of intangible assets — (11) 

(5,925) (13,781) 

Financing activity 
Repayment of lease obligations (759) (755) 

Increase in cash during the year 6,286 323 
Cash, beginning of year 10,233 9,910 
Cash, end of year 16,519 10,233 

Supplementary cash flow information 
Non-cash transactions 

Acquisition of leased vehicles (32) (16) 
Incurrence of lease obligations 32 16 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 

Page 7 

Notes to the financial statements 
December 31, 2021 
(In thousands of dollars) 

1. Description of business 
Municipal Property Assessment Corporation (the Corporation), formerly the Ontario Property 
Assessment Corporation, was incorporated effective January 1, 1998 and is a special act 
corporation under the Municipal Property Assessment Corporation Act, 1997 (Ontario). The 
Corporation is responsible for providing property assessment services for municipalities in the 
Province of Ontario, as well as providing other statutory duties and other activities consistent 
with such duties as approved by its board of directors. All municipalities in Ontario are members 
of the Corporation. 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for 
not-for-profit organizations. 

The significant accounting policies are summarized as follows. 

Fund accounting 

The financial statements include the following funds: 

• The unrestricted fund comprises mainly amounts available for immediate use for the 
general purpose of the Corporation. 

• The reserve for board-appropriated working fund is set aside by the board of directors in 
accordance with the Corporation’s reserve strategy for contingencies and funding for 
identified one-time expenditures. 

• The reserve for employee future benefits is the portion of net assets consisting of internally 
restricted investments set aside to settle employee future benefits. 

• The reserve for enumeration was established to fund the costs associated with the 
preparation of preliminary voters' lists for municipal and school board elections. The next 
enumeration process is scheduled for 2022. 

• The reserve for assessment update was established to fund the costs associated with the 
assessment update. The Corporation generally contributes $2,400 annually to the reserve 
but may vary the annual contribution with approval from the board of directors. The 
unspent reserve balance will be maintained to finance the Assessment Update when the 
Minister of Finance announces the new Assessment date and will be drawn down as 
expenses are incurred. 

• Invested in capital and intangible assets represents assets that have been invested in long-
lived capital and intangible assets which are not readily converted to cash, net of any 
liabilities related to the acquisition of those assets. 

Financial instruments 

The Corporation records cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
initially at fair value and subsequently at amortized cost. Financial assets are tested for 
impairment at the end of each reporting period when there are indications the assets may be 
impaired. 

Investments are recorded at fair value. Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition of financial 
instruments measured subsequently at fair value are expensed as incurred.  



Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 
Notes to the financial statements 
December 31, 2021 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Page 8 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
Capital assets 

Capital assets are recorded at cost and are amortized using the straight-line method as follows: 

Office equipment 5 years 
Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years 
Computer equipment 3 to 4 years 
Small boats and vessels 3 to 8 years 
Vehicles under capital lease 5 years 

Leasehold improvements are also amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease 
or ten years, whichever is less. 

Impairment of long-lived assets 

The Corporation reviews the carrying amount, amortization and useful lives of its long-lived 
assets on an annual basis. If the long-lived asset no longer has any long-term service potential 
to the Corporation, the excess of the net carrying amount over any residual value is recognized 
as an expense in the statement of operations. 

Intangible assets 

Intangible assets consist of computer software, which is recorded at cost and is amortized over 
three years. 

The costs of developing in-house software are expensed as incurred. 

Revenue recognition 

Municipal revenue relates to assessment services and is recognized in the year in which the 
services are provided and collection is reasonably assured. 

Other revenues are comprised of services sold and products delivered from business 
development. These revenues are recognized when the services have been provided and/or the 
product is delivered, and collection is reasonably assured. 

Interest income is recognized when earned. 

The Corporation follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Restricted 
contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are incurred. 
Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the amount 
to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. 

Employee future benefits 

The Corporation has defined benefit plans that provide for post-retirement medical and dental 
coverage and special termination benefits for defined eligible employees. Certain investments 
have been internally restricted but not segregated to pay for post-retirement benefits. 



Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 
Notes to the financial statements 
December 31, 2021 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Page 9 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
Employee future benefits (continued) 

The Corporation has the following policies: 

• The Corporation accrues its obligations under defined benefit plans and the related costs 
when the benefits are earned through current service using the accounting valuation 
method. 

• The cost of post-employment benefits earned by employees is actuarially determined using 
the projected benefit method pro-rated on service and management's best estimates of 
retirement ages of employees, expected health-care costs and dental costs. The accrued 
benefit obligation related to employee future benefits is discounted using market rates on 
high-quality debt instruments. 

• Remeasurements and other items are composed of actuarial gains (losses) on the accrued 
benefit obligation and arise from differences between the actual and expected experience 
and from changes in the actuarial assumptions used to determine the accrued benefit 
obligation, past service costs and gains and losses arising from settlements and 
curtailments. Actuarial gains and losses arise when the accrued benefit obligations change 
during the year. The actuarial gains and losses and other remeasurements including plan 
amendments are recorded in the statement of changes in net assets when incurred. 

In addition, all employees of the Corporation are part of a defined benefit multi-employer 
benefit plan providing both pension and other retirement benefits. Contributions made to this 
plan are expensed as paid as the plan is accounted for as a defined contribution plan. 

Deferred lease inducements 

Lease liabilities include deferred lease inducements, which represent the free rent and 
improvement allowances received from landlords and are amortized over the term of the lease, 
and step-rent liability, which represents the difference between the average annual rent over 
the term of the lease agreement and actual rent paid in the year. 

Use of estimates 

In preparing the Corporation's financial statements, management is required to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of 
contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. Accounts requiring significant estimates include accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities, useful lives of capital assets and employee future benefits. 

3. Investments 
Investments are held within third party managed accounts, which invest independently.  

The current portion of investments consists of amounts that management estimates to be 
liquidated within 12 months. 

Long-term investments consist of amounts that management estimates and intends to hold 
longer than 12 months for future use. 



Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 
Notes to the financial statements 
December 31, 2021 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Page 10 

3. Investments (continued)  
The breakdown of total investments by category is outlined below: 

2021 
$ 

2020 
$ 

Cash 250 — 
Fixed income 82,154 80,910 
Equity 47,528 38,525 
Real assets 17,758 14,134 

147,690 133,569 
Less: Current portion — 2,076 
Long-term investments 147,690 131,493 

The Corporation internally restricts certain securities to fund employee future benefits. 
The breakdown of total investments by intended use is outlined below: 

2021 
$ 

2020 
$ 

General investments 76,845 69,895 
Internally restricted investments 70,845 63,674 

147,690 133,569 

4. Capital assets 

Cost 
$  

Accumulated 
amortization 

$  

2021 
Net 

$  

2020 
Net 

$ 

Office equipment 546 545 1 3 
Furniture and fixtures 8,442 7,437 1,005 901 
Computer equipment 15,263 12,933 2,330 2,273 
Small boats and vessels 390 377 13 16 
Leasehold improvements 20,991 16,605 4,386 5,421 
Vehicles under capital 

lease 
3,768 2,750 1,018 1,729 

Assets under construction 51 — 51 — 
49,451 40,647 8,804 10,343 

5. Intangible assets 

Cost 
$  

Accumulated 
amortization 

$  

2021 
Net 

$  

2020 
Net 

$ 

Computer software 3,022 3,013 9 50



Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 
Notes to the financial statements 
December 31, 2021 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Page 11 

• 

• 

• 

6. Deferred revenue 

2021 
$ 

2020 
$ 

Business development unearned revenue and 
customer down payments 2,583 1,620 

Other deferred amounts 178 181 
2,761 1,801 

7. Employee future benefits   
The Corporation has accrued an obligation for its post-employment benefits as follows: 

Employees who transferred to the Corporation from the Government of Ontario on 
December 31, 1998 

Employees who transferred to the Corporation with less than ten years of service with the 
province will receive post-retirement group benefit coverage through the Corporation for 
themselves and for their dependants’ lifetimes. The cost of these benefits is shared equally 
between the Corporation and the employee for those employees who retire after 
January 1, 2018. 

The Government of Ontario continues to provide post-retirement benefits for employees 
who transferred to the Corporation with ten or more years of service with the province. 

Employees hired by the Corporation after December 31, 1998 

These employees will receive post-retirement group benefit coverage for themselves and 
for their dependants through the Corporation until age 65. 

All employees 

The Corporation is a Schedule II employer under the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act 
(Ontario), 1997 and follows a policy of self-insurance for all its employees. The obligation 
as at December 31, 2021 is $829 ($1,261 in 2020) and is included in the total obligations 
below. 

Information about the Corporation’s accrued benefit obligations and accrued benefit liabilities is 
as follows: 

2021 
$ 

2020 
$ 

Accrued benefit obligations, beginning of year 49,899 41,075 
Current service costs 1,298 1,447 
Interest on accrued obligations 1,403 1,315 
Actuarial (gain) losses (2,828) 6,370 
Contributions (505) (308) 
Accrued benefit obligations, end of year 49,267 49,899



Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 
Notes to the financial statements 
December 31, 2021 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Page 12 

7. Employee future benefits (continued) 
All employees (continued) 

The employee future benefits expense recorded in the statement of operations during the year 
is as follows: 

2021 
$ 

2020 
$ 

Current service costs 1,298 1,447 
Interest on accrued obligations 1,403 1,315 

2,701 2,762 

Remeasurements and other items, consisting of curtailments, settlements, past service costs 
and actuarial gain of $2,828 (loss of $6,370 in 2020), have been recognized directly in net 
assets. 

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the Corporation’s accrued benefit 
obligations are as follows: 

2021 
$ 

2020 
$ 

Discount rate 3.10% 2.8% 
Health care inflation 5.4% grading 

down to 4% 
by 2040 

5.55% grading 
down to 4% 

by 2040 
Vision and dental care inflation 4.93% grading 

down to 4% by 
2040 

4.71% grading 
down to 4% by 

2040 

The date of the most recent actuarial valuation of the accrued benefit obligations was 
December 31, 2019. 

The Corporation paid $28,150 ($27,634 in 2020) of employer and employee contributions to the 
defined benefit multi-employer benefit plan. 

8. Internally restricted net assets 

2021 
$ 

2020 
$ 

Reserve for board-appropriated working fund 47,283 37,121 
Reserve for employee future benefits 21,578 13,775 
Reserve for enumeration 2,200 2,681 
Reserve for assessment update 10,108 8,276 

81,169 61,853 

Interfund transfers are approved by the board of directors. During the year, the board of 
directors approved the transfers between the unrestricted fund and the internally restricted net 
assets as follows: $10,162 to ($11,400 to in 2020) the board-appropriated working fund 
reserve to pay for future one-time expenditures; $1,832 to ($1,389 to in 2020) the assessment 
update reserve to set aside funds for the property assessment process, and $481 from 
($1,968 to in 2020) the enumeration reserve. 



Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 
Notes to the financial statements 
December 31, 2021 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Page 13 

8. Internally restricted net assets (continued) 
The purpose and use of the employee future benefits reserve was approved by the board of 
directors at initial setup, and an annual approval for transfers is not required. A transfer of 
$7,803 to ($1,611 from in 2020) the employee future benefit reserve was made during the 
year. 

Refer to note 2 for a description of the reserves. 

9. Commitments 
The Corporation has commitments under various operating leases for properties. Minimum lease 
payments due in each of the next five years and thereafter are as follows: 

$ 

2022 4,714 
2023 4,579 
2024 3,590 
2025 2,906 
2026 1,814 
Thereafter 703 

18,306 

The Corporation is also committed to paying operating costs and property taxes on its various 
property leases. 

10. Capital leases 
The Corporation entered into several vehicle leases with an interest rate of between 2.51% and 
4.34%, with lease terms up to 60 months. On termination of the lease, the Corporation has 
guaranteed a certain residual value of the vehicle to the lessor, depending on the ultimate lease 
term. 

As at December 31, 2021 the current portion of the capital leases is $685 ($759 in 2020) and 
the long-term portion is $463 ($1,116 in 2020). 

Future minimum annual lease payments required under capital lease arrangements are as 
follows: 

$ 

2022 729 
2023 412 
2024 57 
2025 8 
Total lease payments 1,206 
Less: amount representing interest (58) 

1,148 
Less: current portion 685 

463



Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 
Notes to the financial statements 
December 31, 2021 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Page 14 

• 

11. Contingent liabilities and guarantees 
The Corporation has been named as a defendant in certain legal actions in which damages have 
either been sought or, through subsequent pleadings, could be sought. The outcome of these 
actions is not determinable or is considered insignificant as at December 31, 2021 and, 
accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial statements for any liability that may 
result. Any losses arising from these actions will be recorded in the year the related litigation is 
settled. 

In the normal course of business, the Corporation enters into agreements that meet the 
definition of a guarantee, as outlined in the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada 
Handbook. The Corporation’s primary guarantee subject to disclosure requirements is as 
follows: 

The Corporation enters into agreements that include indemnities in favor of third parties, 
such as purchase agreements, confidentiality agreements, leasing contracts, information 
technology agreements and service agreements. These indemnification agreements may 
require the Corporation to compensate counterparties for losses incurred by the 
counterparties as a result of breaches of contractual obligations, including representations 
and regulations, or as a result of litigation claims or statutory sanctions that may be 
suffered by the counterparty as a consequence of the transaction. The terms of these 
indemnities are not explicitly defined and the maximum amount of any potential 
reimbursement cannot be reasonably estimated. 

The nature of the above indemnifications prevents the Corporation from making a reasonable 
estimate of the maximum exposure due to the difficulties in assessing the amount of liability, 
which stems from the unpredictability of future events and the unlimited coverage offered to 
counterparties. Historically, the Corporation has not made any significant payments under such 
or similar indemnification agreements and, therefore, no amount has been accrued in the 
statement of financial position with respect to these agreements. 

12. Risk management 
Market risk 

The Corporation’s investments are susceptible to market risk, which is defined as the risk the 
fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices. The Corporation’s market risk is affected by changes in the level or volatility of 
market rates or prices, such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and equity 
prices. The Corporation is subject to cash flow interest rate risk due to fluctuations in the 
prevailing levels of market interest rate sensitive investments. The risk is mitigated through the 
Corporation's investment policy, which requires investments to be held in high grade, low risk 
investments. 

Credit risk 

Credit risk arises from the potential a counterparty will fail to perform its obligations. The 
Corporation is exposed to credit risk from banks and debtors. The risk is mitigated in that the 
Corporation conducts business with reputable financial institutions and its debtors are mainly 
entities within a level of the provincial government. 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk the Corporation will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they 
come due. The Corporation manages liquidity through regular monitoring of forecasted and 
actual cash flows. 



Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 
Notes to the financial statements 
December 31, 2021 
(In thousands of dollars) 

Page 15 

13. Credit facility 
The Corporation has an unsecured credit facility of $10,000 to be used for its operations, which 
is renewable annually. The credit facility was temporarily extended to $50,000 in 2020 and 
continued to December 31, 2021. Starting on January 1, 2022, the extended credit facility was 
not renewed. The unsecured credit facility of $10,000 remains in place. 

14. Government remittances  
Government remittances consist of workplace safety insurance costs, sales taxes and payroll 
withholding taxes required to be paid to government authorities when the amounts come due. 
In respect of government remittances, $3,258 ($3,140 in 2020) is included in accounts payable 
and accrued liabilities. 

15. Significant event 
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization characterized the outbreak of a strain of the 
novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) as a pandemic which has resulted in a series of public health 
and emergency measures that have been put in place to combat the spread of the virus. The 
duration and impact of COVID-19 is unknown at this time. While it has limited business travel, 
reduced office utilization, and postponed the Assessment Update, it is not possible to reliably 
estimate the impact that the length and severity of these developments will have on the 
financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Corporation in future periods. 

16. Prior year comparative figures  
Certain of prior year’s comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year’s 
presentation. 



Ministry of Infrastructure 

Infrastructure Program Design and 
Delivery Division 

777 Bay Street, 4th Floor, Suite 425 
Toronto, Ontario  M5G 2E5 

Ministère de l’Infrastructure 

Division de la conception et de la mise en 
œuvre des programmes d'infrastructure 

777, rue Bay, 4 étage, Suite 425 
Toronto (Ontario)  M5G 2E5 

April 2022 

Case Number 2021-09-1-1628978659 

Kathy McDonald, CAO/Clerk 
The Township of Billings 
kmcdonald@billingstwp.ca 

Dear Kathy McDonald, 

Re:  Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP) – Green Infrastructure Funding 
Stream  

Further to the email your organization received from the Honourable Minister Surma, I am 
pleased to follow up regarding your approved Old Mill Road Watermain Replacement project 
under the ICIP Green Infrastructure Funding stream. 

Provided that The Corporation of the Township of Billings enters into a Transfer Payment 
Agreement (TPA), and subject to the terms and conditions of the same, the recipient is eligible 
to receive funding up to the amounts listed in the table below. Please note that only eligible 
costs incurred on and after the federal approval date indicated in this table will be eligible for 
reimbursement.  

Federal Approval Date March 02, 2022 
Federal Contribution $700,091.17 
Provincial Contribution $583,350.97 

Total Funding Provided $1,283,442.14 

Before a TPA is entered into you will be required to complete some pre-requisite reporting which 
is included as an attachment to this letter. Please make best efforts to return this reporting 
to ICIPGreen@ontario.ca by Friday May 20, 2022. Once this reporting has been provided to 
the satisfaction of the Province, you will be provided with the TPA. Neither the Province nor 
Canada is obligated to fund any project costs prior to execution of the TPA. 

Based on our records the federal government has not yet provided notification that it is satisfied 
the above project has fulfilled all Environmental Assessment and Aboriginal Consultation 
requirements.  As detailed in Appendix A, no claims will be reimbursed and construction/site 



 

 

preparation cannot start prior to receipt of this notification from Canada.  If you have received 
this notification, please reply to this email and attach a copy of the notification to your response.  
If you have questions regarding the status of the federal environmental assessment or 
Aboriginal consultation approval you may contact Infrastructure Canada directly at 
infc.aboriginalconsultenv-consultautochtonesenv.infc@canada.ca. 

 
I would also like to take this opportunity to draw your attention to some key terms and conditions 
of funding. These are contained in Appendix A of this letter for your convenience. 
 
Your organization must also confirm that it is in good standing with labour, environment and tax 
laws prior to entering into a transfer payment agreement with the Province. You will be required 
to provide this confirmation in the Transfer Payment Ontario system under your organizational 
profile as the final TPA cannot be executed until this information is confirmed.  
 
My staff and I look forward to working with you as you implement this project. If you have any 
questions, please contact ICIPGreen@ontario.ca.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Paramjit Kaur 
Director 
Infrastructure Program Delivery Branch 
 
c.  Mary Wyga, ICIP Senior Project Analyst 
 
Attachment: Initial Project Report 



 

 

Appendix A 
Key Terms and Conditions of Funding 

 

The following are key terms and conditions that will be included in the TPA. If you have 
concerns about your ability to fulfil any of these requirements please contact 
ICIPGreen@ontario.ca immediately. 
 

 Federal and provincial funding will be defined as both maximum contribution amounts 
(as set out in the body of this letter) and as a proportion of total eligible costs. Costs will 
be eligible for reimbursement after they are incurred and paid for by the recipient. This 
means that recipients will need to have a source of funding to pay for eligible costs which 
can then be claimed for reimbursement from the Province. 
 

 The recipient will be required to fund all amounts in excess of eligible costs, including 
any budget increases and cost overruns, as well as any ineligible costs associated with 
the project. 
 

 Only costs associated with contracts that are entered into after the approval date noted 
above through a transparent, competitive process that ensures the best value for money 
are eligible.  A standing agreement with a vendor on retainer would not be considered to 
meet this requirement.  
 

 The TPA will contain a project description. Receipt of full funding is contingent on 
completing the scope described in the agreement.  
 

 The recipient will ensure all regulatory approvals are in place for the project.  
 

 The recipient will be responsible for ongoing reporting on the project, including the Initial 
Project Report attached to this letter. 
 

 No claims will be reimbursed and construction/site preparation cannot start prior to 
notification from Canada, in writing, that it is satisfied the project has met any potential 
Environmental Assessment and Aboriginal Consultation requirements. For details 
regarding the specific requirements for your project please see the body of the letter. 
 

 If you believe that you have requirements under the Canadian Environmental 
Assessment Act (2012), the Impact Assessment Act (2019) or that your project triggers a 
legal duty to consult please let us know immediately.  
 

 Should future changes to the nature, scope, design or location of the project be 
considered you must notify both the provincial and federal governments immediately to 
allow us to reassess whether the change impacts Aboriginal consultation obligations. 
Notification and approval, if applicable, must occur before you can proceed with any 
such changes. 

 









Township of Billings
Accounts Payable May 3 2022

Date Ck# Name Total Due
May 3 2022 7239 Ainsworth Inc. 1,138.14$        
May 3 2022 7240 Allens Auto Parts 1,706.27$        
May 3 2022 7241 Bridal Veil Variety 259.00$           
May 3 2022 7242 Grand & Toy Ltd. 111.50$           
May 3 2022 7243 Greg Chaytor 160.00$           
May 3 2022 7244 J.L. Richards 1,131.20$        
May 3 2022 7245 Jackson, Sharon 255.59$           
May 3 2022 7246 Laurentian Business Product 135.92$           
May 3 2022 7247 Minister of Finance (Sudbury Central Ambulance)436.50$           
May 3 2022 7248 Ontario Clean Water Agency 2,175.57$        
May 3 2022 7249 Prema Canada ULC 221.31$           
May 3 2022 7250 PROJECT LIFESAVER 1,000.00$        
May 3 2022 7251 UCCM Castle Building Supplies 369.01$           

Total outstanding: 9,100.01$        

Pre-Authorized Payments
Name Total Due

May 3 2022 DD LBPC Leasing Limited 175.00$           
Total Pre-Authorized Payments 175.00$           

Total Accounts Payable 9,275.01$        


